CITY COUNCIL
CITY OF NEW YORK

----- X

TRANSCRIPT OF THE MINUTES

Of the

COMMITTEE ON HOUSING AND BUILDINGS JOINTLY WITH COMMITTEE ON CONTRACTS

_____X

April 21, 2015 Start: 01:40 p.m. Recess: 05:07 p.m.

HELD AT: Council Chambers - City Hall

BEFORE:

JUMAANE D. WILLIAMS Chairperson

COUNCIL MEMBERS:

ANTONIO REYNOSO
ERIC A. ULRICH
HELEN K. ROSENTHAL
KAREN KOSLOWITZ
MARK LEVINE
RAFAEL L. ESPINAL, JR.
RITCHIE J. TORRES
ROBERT E.CORNEGY, JR.
ROSIE MENDEZ

YDANIS A. RODRIGUEZ

A P P E A R A N C E S (CONTINUED)

Carrol Turner

Lafandra Brown

Ithier Lopez

Maritza Silver Ferrel Coordinator Real Affordability for All

Vicki Been Commissioner HPD

Parris Simmons Local 79

Xavier Givens Local 79

Nicole Vecchione Researcher Laborers Union

Melissa Shetler Community Organizer

Johnny Zeda

Glenn Hatcher Vicinity District Council of Carpenters 2 [gavel]

3	CHAIRPERSON WILLIAMS: Good afternoon
4	everyone and thank you for coming. Thank you also
5	for your patience. My name is Council Member
6	Jumaane Williams, Chair of the Committee on Housing
7	and Buildings, Co-Chairing with Council Member
8	Helen Rosenthal who is the chair of Contracts
9	Committee. I'm also joined by Council Members
10	Cornegy, Ulrich, and Koo. As we are all aware the
11	mayor's housing plan seeks to create or preserve
12	200 thousand units of affordable housing over 10
13	years. The administration estimates that 194
14	thousand construction jobs will be created in order
15	to meet these ambitious goals. And has further
16	stated that it is committed to ensure that these
17	jobs will be quality jobs with fair wage, fair
18	wages. I'm sorry we're also joined by the, the
19	public advocate who I forgot to mention council
20	Tish James and by Constantinides. Sorry about that
21	Madam Public Advocate. We are here today to discuss
22	those jobs and the developers who receive city
23	subsidy for affordable housing developments across
24	the city. Specifically we will learn more about the
25	city's oversight and accountability measures

2

3

5

6

8

9

10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

22

23

24

25

related to wage violations by affordable housing developers and what efforts are made to mitigate these harms. I think we can all agree that developers and contractors who have wage violations or similar labor law violations should not continue to receive taxpayer funds in the forms of contracts and subsidies. Just this month we learned that five construction contractors working on New York City public works projects were arrested on charges that they underpaid their employees nearly one million in wages and tried to operate kickback schemes. More egregious cases like this have come to light this year alone. So I'm interested in learning how we combat such bad actors. The women and men risking their lives every single day at various construction sites not only deserve a safe working environment but also deserve to be paid the full wages they are entitled to on a consistent basis. In light of the increased availability of minority women owned developers who could be used, it is not clear why the city would continue to approve and renew contracts with developers, contractors, and subcontractors who have proven time and time again that they cannot be trusted to be reliable stewards

expect to get out of this hearing today and what we

cannot. So I'd like to call on my co-chair Council

25 Member Rosenthal.

1

2

3

5

6

8

9

10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

22

23

1

3

4

5

6

7

8

9

11

12

13 14

15

16

17

18

19

2021

22

23

24

25

CO-CHAIRPERSON ROSENTHAL: Thank you very much Co-Chair and Chair of the Housing and Buildings Committee Jumaane Williams. I appreciate your holding this hearing. I'm Helen Rosenthal, Chair of the City Council's Committee on Contracts. And I'm pleased to join you in holding today's oversight hearing on the labor practices of housing developers who contract with the city. But as we saw most recently and as you mentioned have subcontractors who do not pay their workers. Most in particular the masons, the carpenters and in scaffolding. There are laws and regulations in place to prevent unfair labor practices such as wage theft and to ensure that employers, especially those contracting with the city are treating their workers fairly and equitably. Notably the city is required to contract exclusively with businesses that are deemed responsible and in compliance with labor laws. Obviously responsibility means that the city contractors perform not only their duties but that their subcontractors perform their duties with integrity and reliability to assure good faith performance. Recent instances of wage theft suggest

the city has failed to ensure that contractors in

3

5

6

8

9

10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

22

23

24

25

the construction industry are abiding by the state law or that these contractors are making sure that their subcontractors are abiding by state law. As Council Member Williams noted just this month the attorney general identified five contractors who neglected to pay their workers properly. And when they are made to do so will owe millions of dollars in back pay for, to those workers who have constructed affordable housing in our city. As we work to develop the mayor, as we work to develop more affordable housing in the city we need to ensure that such developments are not built on the backs of workers who are being paid below the prevailing wage or not paid at all. And although the city is limited in its ability to enforce labor laws which almost entirely fall under the state's jurisdiction it's imperative that we identify such injustices to hold city contractors and the subcontractors accountable and to prevent contracting with these developers in the future. Give the, given the magnitude of this issue we look forward to hearing from the Department of Housing and Preservation and Development and the Mayor's Office of Contract Services to discuss their plans

2 to identify such egregious behavior and prevent

3 wage theft in other unscrupulous business practices

4 among contractors as the mayor's housing plan moves

5 forward. I thank you all in advance for your

6 | testimony and especially to those workers who have

7 come out today who are going to share their stories

8 of the realities of what it's like working for such

9 subcontractors. I expect this hearing will help us

10 | identify solutions to the problem of wage theft in

11 | our city. Thank you.

1

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

22

23

24

25

CHAIRPERSON WILLIAMS: Thank you cochair. I'd like, I think the public advocate has an opening statement she'd like to make.

Chairpersons Williams and Rosenthal for the opportunity for, to allow me to participate in today's oversight hearing. I'm somewhat disappointed that the administration is not here. I understand that they will be here at a later hour but I wanted to hear the testimony from the administration, from MOCS as well as HPD but unfortunately I have another meeting scheduled at this hour. I will follow up with the administration to discuss my concerns which are included in this,

in my brief remarks. By now we have all seen	JDS
Development and Property Markets Group 111 Wes	st
57^{th} Street development. This building is a sy	mbol
of missed opportunity for union workers as well	ll as
a glaring safety hazard. Why is all this impor	rtant?
Because of the poor track record of subcontract	ctors
hired to work on this project. For example Par	rkside
Construction, a non-union concrete contractor	was
hired by JDS. And last September as we all known	ow a
Parkside worker was killed after a concrete si	lab
fell on him while he was working on a 37th Str	eet
hotel development. At another site in my forme	er
district at 81 Fleet Place in Brooklyn the Fed	deral
Department of Labor issued 11,900 dollars in :	fines
because the company lacked safety equipment. A	And
there was the New York state lawsuit against	
Parkside from 2013 for failing to pay more that	an 174
thousand dollars in workers compensation insur	rance.
In January I wrote to these companies; JDS and	d PMG
and at the top of the list of my concerns was	the
need to establish strong safety protocols at	the
$57^{\rm th}$ street site. I noted that JDS and PMG mus	t
only consider hiring contractors with the high	hest
standards on safety. Outstanding complaints or	r

2

3

5

6

8

9

10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

22

23

24

25

violations as well as any troubling accidents or incidents must be considered when choosing which contractors will be hired to work on the site. And their response to my letter was that they respected my comments on work place safety and noted that the ownership of 111^{th} West 57^{th} has established a track record when it comes to successfully completing complex structures. But my concern was not over the owner. It was over non-union subcontractors hired by the owner. As we move forward with the mayor's housing plan we must ensure that developers only hire contractors with the highest standards on safety and that outstanding complaints or violation are considered. You see I know a little bit about this because in my former district as part of the redevelopment of downtown Brooklyn as you can recall when I was the city council member I recall a number of fatalities and incidents of non-union workers. In fact my office as long, along with the community that I represented had to bury quite a few of them. Non-union job sites are statistically more dangerous. A building trades employees association study found that 65 percent of stop work orders issued by the city's building

commitment to promoting the participation of WMBEs

Smith my Deputy Chief of Staff, Jen Wilcox and

Shejuaday Codray [sp?] councils to the committee,

24

2 Guillermo Patino and Jose Conley [sp?] Policy

3 Analyst to the committee, and Sara Gastelum the

4 committee's finance analyst. With that said we're

5 going to call up our first panel. This is a panel

6 of affected workers. Maritza Silver Farrel Real

7 Affordability for All, Carrol Turner, Lafandra

8 | Brown, and Ithier Lopez. Can you all raise your

9 | right hand please? Do you affirm to tell the truth,

10 | the whole truth, and nothing but the truth in your

11 | testimony before this committee and to respond

12 | honestly to council member questions. You can

13 | begin. We'll set the clock for three minutes and

14 you can begin at your leisure.

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

22

23

24

25

name is Carrol Turner. I work with, I work 13 years with... affiliated companies... affordable housing. And I'm here today just to enlighten you, the council members, on what is going on. We've been rob from our pay prevailing wages job, mistreated, verbal abuse, racial abuse, but what I'm here mainly about is that the HPD people are affiliates, always give this family owned company subsidies off our own taxpayers money to cheat us. We have been disbarred from doing prevailing wages job before, changed the

person. The Auringer family is a greedy family and

I'd like you, sincerely I beseech and ask you to

24

sexually assaulted by company management amongst a

number of other things. It is, it, it's mind

24

1

3

4

5

6

7

8

9

10

11

1213

14

15

16

17

18 19

20

2122

23

24

25

boggling how the city and the state keeps funding a company like this. These are the abuses that we receive out there every day not knowing if we're going to make it home. We have to stop. We need your help. You have to stop this guy. He's abusing and he's killing us out there.

ITHIER LOPEZ: Good afternoon. My name's Ithier Lopez. These are my fellow strikers. I'm been affiliated with the Auringer family for 10 years. And just to touch on some light basis safety issues and safety training and safety precaution. These guys, they don't take no safety measures. They don't train their, their workers. I'm an example. They put me on a job. They told me follow the next guy. I fell off a building and impaled a rebar through my hand. They have no regards to safety like in jobs like to the community. And like Carrol and Lefandra says, wage theft. We've been misclassified on prevailing wage job. We've been robbed our wages weekly. And this is not just a story we're telling. I've been on strike going for a year. And like Carrol and Lefandra says we need you guys' help and we're out here. We're standing for what we believe in and this is it. Thank you.

2 MARITZA SILVER FERREL: Good afternoon.

My name is Maritza Silver Ferrel. I am the 3 coordinator of the Real Affordability for All 5 Coalition. We are the largest coalition of tenants and workers fighting for affordable housing and 6 good union jobs. I would like to thank the 8 committee for the opportunity to testify today. 9 They, real affordability for all coalition is 10 committee, committed to ensuring that we address the growing affordable housing crisis using 11 numerous strategies including building new units 12 and preserving existing affordable housing. Sorry. 13 14 With particular emphasis currently on those in New 15 York City Housing Authority and the Rent 16 Stabilization system from our perspective new affordable units are desperately needed. But they 17 should not be built by developers who use 18 19 contractors that have a history of stealing from their workers. Indeed one of the major reasons why 20 there is a such a affordable housing crunch in New 21 York is because workers aren't making enough to be 22 able to afford their rent and basic needs. That is 23 why we must avoid developers like Mountco which 24 25 uses contractors that were recently arrested after

Т.	COMMITTEE ON HOUSING AND BUILDINGS 18
2	an investigation by Attorney General Eric
3	Schneiderman and Department of Investigation
4	Commissioner Mark Peters determining that they had
5	stolen wages from its employees when doing work on
6	the Sugar Hill house in Harlem. We need to take a
7	hard line against Mountco, on other developers that
8	have business with the city. And at the time, at
9	the same time pray on the workers. It is imperative
10	that as we undertake a great effort to build
11	affordable housing that this city needs we do it in
12	the right way. Developers like Mountco who have a
13	history of working with contractors with track
14	record are breaking the law have simply shown that
15	they do not know how to build the right way. I will
16	like to thank you again for the opportunity to
17	testify this afternoon and will look forward to
18	continuing to work with the city council and
19	administration so we can jointly ensure that
20	workers with good union jobs construct housing that
21	is actually affordable to the majority of New
22	Yorkers. Thank you very much.
23	CHAIRPERSON WILLIAMS: Thank you very

much for your testimony. The, the three workers

1	COMMITTEE ON HOUSING AND BUILDINGS 19
2	work for the same company? And what was the name of
3	the company and the family?
4	CARROL TURNER: It's, the, the
5	family name is Auringer, A U R I N G E R. And it's
6	Thomas, Dave, and Michael.
7	CHAIRPERSON WILLIAMS: Thomas, Dave, and
8	Mike. And spell Auringer again please.
9	CARROL TURNER: A U R I N G E R.
10	CHAIRPERSON WILLIAMS: G E R.
11	CARROL TURNER: Yeah. And those company,
12	when I start working with them they were Super
13	Structure then it's New York Plank, New York
14	CHAIRPERSON WILLIAMS: Sorry just let's,
15	let's go through the companies. When you first
16	started it was what?
17	CARROL TURNER: Super Structure.
18	CHAIRPERSON WILLIAMS: Super Structure.
19	CARROL TURNER: Yeah.
20	CHAIRPERSON WILLIAMS: And then it was.
21	CARROL TURNER: Then it was New York
22	Plan.
23	CHAIRPERSON WILLIAMS: New York
24	CARROL TURNER: Plan.
25	CHAIRPERSON WILLIAMS: Plan?

1	COMMITTEE ON HOUSING AND BUILDINGS 20
2	CARROL TURNER: Yes.
3	CHAIRPERSON WILLIAMS: Okay.
4	CARROL TURNER: New York Pre-cast.
5	CHAIRPERSON WILLIAMS: New York Pretax?
6	CARROL TURNER: Pre-cast.
7	CHAIRPERSON WILLIAMS: Precast.
8	CARROL TURNER: Then you have Urban
9	Directors. That's the, that's the name that they're
10	going on
11	CHAIRPERSON WILLIAMS: Urban Directors?
12	CARROL TURNER: Yeah. And you have US
13	Crane and Rigging.
14	CHAIRPERSON WILLIAMS: US Trade and
15	Rigging?
16	CARROL TURNER: US Crane.
17	CHAIRPERSON WILLIAMS: Crane. US Crane
18	and Rigging.
19	CARROL TURNER: Crane and US Crane and
20	Rigging.
21	CHAIRPERSON WILLIAMS: Okay.
22	CARROL TURNER: New York Steel and
23	CHAIRPERSON WILLIAMS: New York Steel.
24	CARROL TURNER: New York Hoist.
25	CHAIRPERSON WILLIAMS: New York

1	COMMITTEE ON HOUSING AND BUILDINGS 21
2	CARROL TURNER: Hoist. That's the
3	outside
4	CHAIRPERSON WILLIAMS: Hoist.
5	CARROL TURNER:elevator
6	CHAIRPERSON WILLIAMS: Those are all the
7	company names they work under?
8	LAFANDRA BROWN: They work under all
9	those names.
10	CARROL TURNER: That, that's the name
11	they work on. And I work in Kingston upstate and
12	under the name of Port UN Trucking also.
13	CHAIRPERSON WILLIAMS: Port Union
14	Trucking.
15	CARROL TURNER: Port UN Trucking.
16	CHAIRPERSON WILLIAMS: Port UN Trucking,
17	upstate. Are any of you had union jobs or are all
18	these nonunion jobs?
19	LAFANDRA BROWN: All nonunion.
20	CARROL TURNER: All nonunion.
21	CHAIRPERSON WILLIAMS: I appreciate you
22	coming to share your story. I was just thinking if
23	you don't have a concern that they would find out
24	and, and do some sort of retribution. Is that a

concern that you have?

2	CARROL TURNER: We are on strike. We
3	have been pfft, that's nothing new to us. For
4	instance if you as a worker stand up for your
5	right…
6	CHAIRPERSON WILLIAMS: So you're you're
7	all three currently on strike?
8	[cross-talk]
9	CARROL TURNER: Yes we are.
10	ITHIER LOPEZ: We're just, we're just
11	standing up for the, the rest of the workers that
12	still in the struggle, still getting their wages
13	robbed and isn't, and isn't, you know it didn't
14	just stop because we three went on a strike. It's
15	still going on. Like he believes he runs the city.
16	You go outside right now and you look up and you
17	see one of his cranes. You know this guy's real
18	arrogant.
19	CHAIRPERSON WILLIAMS: How, how long
20	have you been in strike? How many people are on
21	strike.
22	ITHIER LOPEZ: Well I've been on strike
23	going on a year, me, me and Carrol Turner.

LAFANDRA BROWN: Eight months.

you for coming and testifying at this hearing. I'm

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

22

23

24

very disappointed to hear that no city agency has
reached out to you or worked with you on your
issue. I can only draw conclusions about what that
means in terms of the city's knowledge to not

7 companies that are treating you so wrong. So I'm

contractor allow a subcontract again with these

8 going to reserve my questions for those city

9 agencies. And it's my understanding they may not

10 even be here to testify today. So I'm very

11 disappointed about that because in my oversight

12 position I plan to write this wrong. Thank you.

CARROL TURNER: Thank you very much.

CHAIRPERSON WILLIAMS: I just wanted to just be clear. You said you've, you've come before the city council to express this issue before?

Carrol Turner spoke and Eddie, I guess Eddie spoke on my behalf because I had to leave and HPD was here. And I kid you not like 10 minutes that after they left HPD's calling my phone. Oh come we want to meet with you we want to sit down. And I sat down with HPD and they, they, they wasn't straight forward us. Like you know they just like oh make a

your W2 form and if it's their second go around in

.

2.4

settlements I really need to hear from administration why we can't do anything to one stop that and two why we have to continue contracting with them and give them our dollars. So I'm sorry that, if we didn't hear it before but I'm, I'm, I know I can speak for my colleagues we're outraged in hearing what it is you're going through and similarly not getting any recourse. But I will when administration comes up I want to specifically ask about the conversation they had with you and what particular follow up has happened. Has anyone reached out to the attorney general's office or...

CARROL TURNER: As I was saying, that's why I was saying earlier that I, we are going through our pay stubs and our W2 form because that is one of the thing that we want to speak with the attorney general and let him know what's really taking place with this subcontractor.

ITHIER LOPEZ: We basic, we basically got to build up our evidence because we can't just, we can't just go with hearsay and he say. We got to show him proof.

CHAIRPERSON WILLIAMS: Well we definitely hear you today. And we're going to

PUBLIC ADVOCATE JAMES: U R, Urban...

1	COMMITTEE ON HOUSING AND BUILDINGS 29
2	CARROL TURNER: Yeah and Erectors, E R E
3	CTORS.
4	PUBLIC ADVOCATE JAMES: Erectors.
5	CARROL TURNER: And they have New York
6	Steel.
7	PUBLIC ADVOCATE JAMES: New York, New
8	York Steel?
9	CARROL TURNER: Yes and, and you have US
10	Crane and Rigging.
11	PUBLIC ADVOCATE JAMES: US what?
12	CARROL TURNER: Crane.
13	PUBLIC ADVOCATE JAMES: Crane?
14	CARROL TURNER: Yes. And Rigging.
15	PUBLIC ADVOCATE JAMES: And what's the
16	last one?
17	CARROL TURNER: Rigging, R I G
18	PUBLIC ADVOCATE JAMES: Rigging.
19	CARROL TURNER:G I N G.
20	PUBLIC ADVOCATE JAMES: US Crane and
21	Rigging?
22	CARROL TURNER: Yes.
23	PUBLIC ADVOCATE JAMES: Okay.
24	CARROL TURNER: And you have also New
25	York Hoist.

1	COMMITTEE ON HOUSING AND BUILDINGS 30
2	PUBLIC ADVOCATE JAMES: New York
3	CARROL TURNER: Hoist, H O I S T.
4	PUBLIC ADVOCATE JAMES: Hoist?
5	CARROL TURNER: Yes.
6	PUBLIC ADVOCATE JAMES: So it's Urban
7	Erectors, New York Steel, US Crane and Riggers, and
8	New York Hoist, correct?
9	CARROL TURNER: Yes that's correct.
10	PUBLIC ADVOCATE JAMES: And my, I
11	understand you testified earlier that they have
12	been disbarred. What
13	CARROL TURNER: Yeah.
14	PUBLIC ADVOCATE JAMES: What company had
15	been disbarred, which one of those four?
16	CARROL TURNER: I think that was Super
17	Structure.
18	PUBLIC ADVOCATE JAMES: So that's one
19	you did not give me. Super
20	CARROL TURNER: Structure.
21	PUBLIC ADVOCATE JAMES: Super structure?
22	CARROL TURNER: Yeah yeah that's the
23	name that was going on at the first one I start
24	working with them in 2001 and then they changed
25	that name so they don't go by that name anymore.

1	COMMITTEE ON HOUSING AND BUILDINGS 31
2	PUBLIC ADVOCATE JAMES: So originally
3	they went under Super Structure, they were
4	disbarred, they came back under another name
5	CARROL TURNER: Yes.
6	PUBLIC ADVOCATE JAMES: And that name
7	was?
8	CARROL TURNER: New York Plank and New
9	York Pre-Cast. They used both names.
10	PUBLIC ADVOCATE JAMES: New York Plank
11	and, and New York
12	CARROL TURNER: Pre-Cast.
13	PUBLIC ADVOCATE JAMES: Pre-Cast.
14	CARROL TURNER: Yes. They use both
15	names.
16	PUBLIC ADVOCATE JAMES: What were they
17	debarred for?
18	CARROL TURNER: Because of the same
19	prevailing wages job
20	PUBLIC ADVOCATE JAMES: Wage theft?
21	CARROL TURNER: Wage theft, basically
22	yeah wage theft.
23	PUBLIC ADVOCATE JAMES: And
24	ITHIER LOPEZ: They, they misclassify
25	the workers on the

1	COMMITTEE ON HOUSING AND BUILDINGS 35
2	ITHIER LOPEZ: Okay we're Ironworkers.
3	PUBLIC ADVOCATE JAMES: Ironworkers.
4	ITHIER LOPEZ: Yes. And they misclassify
5	us and they put us low, lowest rank
6	PUBLIC ADVOCATE JAMES: What does that
7	mean they misclassify you?
8	ITHIER LOPEZ: Because when you're in a
9	prevailing wage job you're supposed to label your
10	workers. You got ironworkers. You got laborers. You
11	got You got electricianists [phonetic]. The list
12	goes on. And they put us as laborers which would be
13	the lowest rate.
14	PUBLIC ADVOCATE JAMES: Ah. And when in
15	fact you're a, you are
16	ITHIER LOPEZ: A ironworker.
17	PUBLIC ADVOCATE JAMES:an ironworker.
18	ITHIER LOPEZ: Yes.
19	PUBLIC ADVOCATE JAMES: And so the rate
20	for ironworkers is what?
21	ITHIER LOPEZ: Like I said I never got
22	paid the real rate from them so I wouldn't know.
23	PUBLIC ADVOCATE JAMES: So, but the
24	lowest rate is for laborers?
25	ITHIER LOPEZ: Correct.

honest but more important for your bravery.

Obviously as the chair mentioned I am outraged by

all of the allegations that have been indicated.

There needs to be a full investigation. It's my

understanding that MOCS which is the agency that's

responsible for keeping vendex is not testifying

20

21

22

23

24

1	COMMITTEE ON HOUSING AND BUILDINGS 37
2	here today. If that is that too is outrageous. We
3	need to get to the bottom of this and the fact that
4	HPD has not gotten back to you in a year is
5	something that this committee as well as this
6	public advocate will get to the bottom of. I thank
7	you for testifying and I look forward to working
8	with you in the future.
9	ITHIER LOPEZ: Thank you for
10	PUBLIC ADVOCATE JAMES: Keep hope alive.
11	And
12	CARROL TURNER: Thank you very much.
13	PUBLIC ADVOCATE JAMES:and victory is
14	ours.
15	CARROL TURNER: Yeah and
16	ITHIER LOPEZ: Thank you.
17	CARROL TURNER:he said told me that
18	this is my city I do whatever I want in this city
19	because this is my city. Thomas Auringer he told me
20	that.
21	ITHIER LOPEZ: Thank you.
22	CARROL TURNER: Thank you.
23	CHAIRPERSON WILLIAMS: Wait. This, some
24	of our colleagues have some additional questions.

given to companies that had already been found to

1	COMMITTEE ON HOUSING AND BUILDINGS 39
2	have deplorable records as it relates to exploiting
3	their workforce. I cannot believe we're already an
4	hour and 20 minutes into the hearing and the
5	commissioner is just walking in. It shows a blatant
6	disrespect for this committee and the council.
7	Answers to questions did not come back in that
8	November hearing and we have been waiting
9	patiently, I certainly have as a council member for
10	today to ask some serious questions as to why we
11	are becoming accomplice to this exploitation, why
12	the city is giving money to these developers who
13	continue to not even pay a living wage, let along a
14	prevailing wage, companies that are not paying
15	unemployment insurance or overtime and, and to
16	understand that you have complaints of sexual
17	harassment and that these sites are not even safe.
18	And in addition to you not getting paid a fair
19	wage. I cannot believe that our city is still
20	giving money to these contractors and letting this
21	work happen. 16 months into the de Blasio
22	administration. So I'm happy to see that the
23	commissioner is finally here and I look forward to

getting some answers to these serious questions

COMMITTEE ON HOUSING AND BUILDINGS 40 that you're bringing about in your testimony. Thank you.

CARROL TURNER: Thank you.

CHAIRPERSON WILLIAMS: Just for clarity the second time it's come up. The Commissioner has, although not, I haven't agreed with every answer she's given she has consistently been responsive to the committee and consistently been on time to the committee. This particular hearing was supposed to start at 1:00. We did get information prior that something urgent came up. We did have the curtesy of getting the information. So I appreciate that from the commissioner and I don't feel she had disrespected the committee at this point. Well things come up so thank you for letting me know. Council Member Miller.

COUNCIL MEMBER MILLER: Thank you Mr.

Chair. And anybody you could answer, but could you speak specifically or highlight instances of safety violations or, that you've incurred on a work site?

ITHIER LOPEZ: For instance when you're cutting a plank you know that dust, that dust is poison, you supposed to use water. And when you're cutting plank and around the community, around

be welded across the T. I am a fireguard, I'm a

1	COMMITTEE ON HOUSING AND BUILDINGS 42
2	licensed torch operator. I'm a licensed signal and
3	rigger. I however am not a welder. And my boss made
4	me, he said weld or get off my job.
5	COUNCIL MEMBER MILLER: And, and, and
6	because of that you sustained an eye injury?
7	LAFANDRA BROWN: Yeah.
8	COUNCIL MEMBER MILLER: Was any worker's
9	compensation involved?
10	LAFANDRA BROWN: No.
11	COUNCIL MEMBER MILLER: Anyone else
12	LAFANDRA BROWN: That's being taken care
13	of now on the legal side.
14	COUNCIL MEMBER MILLER: Okay.
15	ITHIER LOPEZ: When I first started 10
16	years ago I fell off a building because they didn't
17	tell me well the rebar snapped and I fell off a
18	building the rebar impaled through my right hand.
19	COUNCIL MEMBER MILLER: Did you receive
20	worker's compensation?
21	ITHIER LOPEZ: I didn't even know
22	there's, there was a such thing.
23	COUNCIL MEMBER MILLER: Is workers
24	compensation sign posted on the work sites?

LAFANDRA BROWN: No.

or skill set?

so?

3

5

6

7

8

9

10

11 12

13

14

15

16

17 18

19

20

22

21

23

24

25

ITHIER LOPEZ: I was not, I, I'm not a certified master rigger but I did take the 30 hour tour crane and rigging course but no I'm not a master rigger.

COUNCIL MEMBER MILLER: Okay. Thank you.

CHAIRPERSON WILLIAMS: The, the more questions that I ask like it goes from outrageous to horrific. I, this is just kind of unbelievable what, what I'm hearing. I'm going to ask one of my staff members or one of the housing staff members to get your information. I'd like to meet with you relatively soon and really get into the heart of this. And I'm going to reach out to the, the buildings commissioner shortly after this hearing. I'd also like if you can tell me a few of his sites. I'd like to show up and make a visit and really see what's going on. There's no way that we can hear this and not move on the craziness that we're hearing with people injured and, I mean this is, I don't, I'm not even sure what to say about what's happen, if this is really happening today and if it's the three of you that means there's a whole lot more out there who don't even know where to go and may not even know how bad they are being

CARROL TURNER: ...University. They doing a job on Close Avenue in the Bronx I don't, and they doing the next one on Boone Avenue also in the Bronx. They doing 15 Jackson Street in Brooklyn also. That's...

if you could just... okay she's writing it down.

Alright so we, we certainly would like to followup. And I just want to know for the three of you
who now find yourselves in a strike situation what
was the tipping point for you going out on strike
as opposed to some of your colleagues who obviously
are still on jobs.

CARROL TURNER: Basically we're just tired of the treatment; the verbal abuse, the racial abuse, the wage theft, you, we could work like 40 hours, as 40 hours is a work week. And when you go to collect your, your pay you get paid for 35, 38 hours, that's is just apart from the prevailing wages job that we weren't paid properly.

COUNCIL MEMBER CORNEGY: And if you don't mind me asking how are you, since this is not union how are you sustaining yourself through the strike period?

2 C

CARROL TURNER: We've been really being

3 funded by the international union... so that's,

4 that's basically... that's all we, we, we surviving

5 at this time.

COUNCIL MEMBER CORNEGY: And are you having any actions on the job sites that you're aware of? Are you going in and participating in actions?

ITHIER LOPEZ: We visit the job sites and stuff. But they, they intimidate the guys that are still working and they, you know they taught me oh you go next to those guys you're getting fired.

COUNCIL MEMBER CORNEGY: Okay thank you.

CHAIRPERSON WILLIAMS: Thank you all for your testimony. Thank you all for testimony and we make sure we get your information we definitely will follow up. And thank you Maritza as well. Oh we've been joined by Council Member Koslowitz, Mendez, and Reynoso. Next up we'd like to call Commissioner Vicki Been from HPD and Baaba Halm from HPD as well. Welcome Commissioner. And thank you for giving us the heads up that you were going to have an issue before the hearing today. I'm sure you heard at least a bit of the back and forth we

2

3

5

6

8

9

10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

22

23 anyone in the room. So as you know I am Vicki Been.
24 I am the Commissioner of Housing Preservation and
25 Development and I'm joined by Baaba Halm who's the

or other assistance to owners who are, who are

renovating their properties for use as affordable

1

2

3

5

6

8

9

10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

22

23

24

2

3

5

6

8

9

10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

22

23

24

25

housing. So the contractors working on these city assisted property, projects are not selected by HPD and they have no direct legal or contractual relationship with HPD. They are not city vendors and they are not subject to the city's procurement rules okay? So that's a, a very fundamental difference. And let me just illustrate with a, a graphic. Basically we provide assistance in the forms of, of loans, grants, etcetera to we call a sponsor. Who we provide assistance to the property owner who we refer to as the sponsor of the development. That sponsor selects and contracts directly with the general contractor which is that second curly cue. The general contractor then contracts directly with any subcontractors that they may need depending upon the job okay? So, so that means again that we do not have any direct legal or contractual relationship with either the general contractor or the subcontractor that the general contractors hire. So now I want to distinguish that just because it, it is sometimes unclear from the work that we sometimes do under our emergency repair program or our alternative enforcement program. So when we believe that we

have to step in and do repair or rehab to an existing building because it's an emergency condition or unfortunately when we have to do something like emergency demolition work that is performed by contractors that we select and that we retain directly and have a contractual relationship with. And so that kind of work is subject to the city procurement rules because the city is directly contracting for construction services. So our office of enforcement and neighborhood services 11 retains contractors to perform, perform repair, 12 rehab, or demolition work only in those situations 13 14 as I mentioned where there's an emergency and the 15 owner has failed to comply with its legal 16 obligation to perform that work. So I understand the, you know what we're talking about here today 17 to be more along the lines of the sponsor review 18 issues where we are not contracting directly with the general contractor or the subcontractors our 20 real relationship is with the sponsor right. I'm 21 happy to answer any questions about the AEP or the, 22 23 or the, I'm sorry Emergency Repair Program or the Alternative Enforcement Program where we are direct

contractors but I'll focus my remarks on, on the

1

2

3

5

6

8

9

10

19

24

2

3

5

6

8

9

10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

22

23

24

25

other situation. Okay so we do basically three things. We do what we call sponsor review. We do labor monitoring. And we do what we call enhanced review. Our sponsor review procedure, our labor monitoring efforts, and our enhanced review process are intended really to do three things. First they're intended to screen out bad actors to prevent work from going to developers and prevent them from hiring contractors that do not comport with wage and construction quality standards or have other issues that bear on their competence or their integrity. The second thing is that we are trying to monitor. We monitor work that we are financing to ensure compliance with those wage and construction quality standards. And finally we try to deter bad behavior. We try to carefully scrutinize when there are things in someone's history that give us cause for concerns. And we impose conditions upon those sponsors when we identify those kinds of, of issues through what we call enhanced review. And I'll go through each of those steps in a minute. But through those efforts we try to, we let developers and others know whether the firms that they are thinking about

2

3

5

6

8

9

10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

22

23

24

25

dealing with as a contractor or as a subcontractor will require rigorous monitoring and they, those procedures also allow us to refuse the participation of firms who despite enhanced review do not live up to their obligations. So let me start with... I keep doing this wrong... with sponsor review. So for new construction and rehab affordable housing projects prior to receiving assistance from us, so prior to getting a loan or whatever it is that we're using the sponsor and its general contractor are required to complete the agency sponsor review process. That process, our sponsor review process is an extensive background check that's intended to verify the integrity and the competence of entities and individuals that are seeking to participate on HPD projects. So the entity, its affiliates, and their principals in individual officers have to complete an extensive disclosure statement which captures information covering a range of topics. The disclosure statement covers among other things whether they have any outstanding code violations, any arrears on taxes, water/sewer charges, and other municipal charges, performance on prior governmental and

2

3

5

6

8

9

10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

22

23

24

25

private projects, performance on prior governmental and private loans and other obligation, criminal investigations, convictions, enforcement actions, and administrative proceedings. The sponsor review unit also checks databases and other sources at the local state and federal levels to determine whether there were any outstanding issues that might raise questions or concerns for the agency before proceeding with a project. So the kinds of, of issues that we identify during sponsor review, some of those issues can be resolved by the sponsor or the general contractor before closing. So for example if they have an outstanding housing code violation that can be fixed or if they are in tax arrears they can pay those tax arrears and we can then go forward if that's the only issue that's on the table, we can go forward with the closing. However other issues may be too serious or too difficult to resolve. So criminal behavior, dishonesty, loan defaults, or some history of poor quality work are obviously red flags that can't, that present a significant hurdle to going forward with the closing. Those issues may lead us to either tell a sponsor that we are not willing to

3

5

6

8

9

10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

22

23

24

25

close on the project or if the issues are with a general contractor we will tell the sponsor that we will not close on the project unless they select another general contractor. On average about 400 projects each year require financing through, receive, not, many more require, but they receive financing from HPD. The sponsors and the general contractors for each project as I said have to go through our sponsor review process. And the type of information and the breadth of the data that we consider in determining whether an entity has the competence and the integrity to participate in any of our supported projects is deeper and more extensive we believe than any housing finance entity in the nation. For example we've talked extensively with Seattle and San Francisco. They do not conduct background checks what's so ever. They look at the financial wherewithal with the sponsor through a review of audited financial statements but they do not look at that long list of things that, that we ask for disclosure and then we review those things as, as well. The state housing finance agency uses a questionnaire that is similar to ours but not nearly as detailed and, not nearly as

3

5

6

8

9

10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

22

23

24

25

detailed as the one that we use. Okay. So that's sponsor review. So once somebody passes sponsor review and we go through and, go ahead and, and close the deal with them then we do very active monitoring of the project as it proceeds. Though our labor, we, and we do this in two ways. Through our labor monitoring unit which we call LMU we try, we rigorously enforce prevailing wage standards when they apply to a particular job. So our LMU ensures that contractors and subcontractors working on prevailing wage projects are complying with wage and labor law requirements during the course of construction. So contractors and subcontractors are required to pay, to give us weekly payroll information and our labor compliance officers review that weekly payroll information. They compare the payroll information against the pertinent prevailing wage schedule. In addition, they, LMU sends verification letters to workers at their home addresses and conducts unannounced visits to construction sites to interview workers about what they are getting paid. The letters in the interviews provide an opportunity for workers to let us know of any payment discrepancies and to

1	COMMITTEE ON HOUSING AND BUILDINGS 58
2	furnish payroll information independently. So
3	that's what our labor monitoring unit does and it
4	is focused on the compliance with prevailing wage
5	requirements that may be applicable to a particular
6	job. In addition we have what we call our building
7	and land development service or our bills
8	[phonetic] unit. And those inspectors are regularly
9	on site during construction. They record
10	information about the subcontractors that are on
11	the job, the number of workers that are on the job,
12	the progress of the construction, and any quality
13	problems that they see. They share that information
14	when they get back to the office. They share that
15	information with the labor monitoring unit to

support our investigations of prevailing wage 16 issues. When we believe that a prevailing wage or a 17 labor law violation has occurred we have several 18 remedies. We can withhold loan advances for the 19 completed work. Those are the advances that the 20 21 sponsor uses to pay contractors and we can withhold 22 them until all outstanding violations are addressed. A second thing that we do is that we can 23 collect restitution from the subcontractor or the 24 25 general contractor and disperse that back to the

workers if we believe the workers have been 2 underpaid. And then third is we can work with law 3 enforcement entities to pursue criminal sanctions 5 against that contractor or subcontractor. So those are the remedies that, that we use. Now on our... 6 sorry I seem... I keep going backwards, I'm sorry. 8 One of the things that I think that we face and you 9 can see it in the, in the testimony that you've 10 received earlier is that our enforcement efforts while we get the payroll records, we compare the 11 payroll records. We, we have people on the site who 12 are our eyes and ears. We rely very heavily on the 13 14 workers themselves. We really need workers to come 15 forward and let us know when they see, when they 16 are being underpaid, when they think that they are being mistreated, those kinds of things. And that 17 is difficult. It's difficult because workers fear 18 19 retaliation as we just heard. They fear that if they complain their, the contractor might be 20 removed from the job and then they would lose their 21 job. And they fear being blacklisted from future 22 23 employment opportunities because they have complained. So that is a, you know a, a very 24 25 unfortunate fact of life on these jobs and it makes

failed in some way in the past to comply with labor

or construction quality standards. So a contractor

24

2

3

5

6

8

9

10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

22

23

24

25

can be placed on enhanced review if they have outstanding penalties for past labor law violations of 500 thousand or more, if they have had a history of multiple or significant construction quality issues, if they've had a history of multiple or significant labor law or construction law violations, or if they are subject to state or federal debarment. So any of those things would trigger enhanced review. Now our enhanced review process is a, is on a project by project basis and project by project we determine whether or not to approve the participation of a contractor or to impose special requirements as a condition of closing the financing with that contractor. The additional conditions that may be imposed include third party monitoring that's paid for by the general contractor and conducted by an independent labor monitor, labor compliance service provider. The third party monitors are intended to help the general contractor improve its internal controls to ensure compliance with the labor laws. It does not replace labor monitoring unit monitoring. It is an addition to LMU monitoring. Third party monitors can cost as much as 2,000 dollars per unit. We

3

5

6

8

9

10 11

12

13 14

15

16

17 18

19

20 21

22

23

24 25

enhanced review. A second thing that we can do is ramp up the enforcement, ramp up the monitoring by our labor monitoring unit as well. We also can conduct project specific award conferences with all of the subcontractors to review the labor laws and

impose that cost on the general contractor if under

to review the prevailing wage regulations and, and procedures so that we are, we are, because we have

done it ourselves we, we can require that, that

those be brought to the attention of all

subcontractors. And then finally we can review all

the subcontractor contracts to ensure that the

required contractual language and the prevailing

wage schedules are made part of those contracts

between the general contractor and the

subcontractor. Now although enhanced review has

been in place only for a couple of years since 2012

as I said we believe that it has been effective in

preventing the participation of actors with a

history of noncompliance with labor or construction

quality issues in HPD sponsored projects. And in

subjecting those actors to rigorous monitoring when

warranted. In order to strengthen the program, it

is a relatively new program and we are constantly

2

3

5

6

8

9

10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

22

23

24

25

several issues that are on the table and that we are now exploring with the corp council to be sure that we're on strong legal ground. And I want to just take a minute to talk about those. So one thing that we are considering is requiring all general contractors to obtain the... or I'm sorry... requiring all contractors subject to enhanced review to complete a compliance action plan that's acceptable to HPD. We now talk through with the, with the contractors that are, are, are subject to enhanced review, what kinds of steps they are going to take, but we are considering requiring them to file that action plan in writing and outline the specific steps the contractor will take to improve its internal controls and ensure compliance with all the laws, regulations, or contractual obligations. A second thing that we are, that we are, are considering is requiring general contractors to obtain the prior written approval of HPD before retaining or using or allowing any of its subcontractors to retain or use whether directly or indirectly any subcontractor who is on enhanced review status. Many general contractors

2

3

5

6

8

9

10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

22

23

24

25

already avoid subcontracting with any firm that's on our enhanced review list. But we can, we are considering further ensuring that the general contractor takes it seriously its obligation to monitor its subcontractors by requiring advanced approval and the imposition of additional conditions when necessary if they are using a subcontractor who is on the enhanced review list. As I said we're working closely with the law department on possible improvements to the program and, and changes to the program to ensure that our changes are legal and comply with due process but we are anxious to hear your views about what else we could be doing and we are constantly looking to see what more we could be doing to ensure that our jobs are, that the people who are working on our jobs are complying with the law. So in closing our, our sponsor review processes, our labor monitoring activities and the extra scrutiny that we place through the enhanced review process is, I have described our developers and the integrity of the contractors, the integrity, the safety, the quality of the contractors that they select, their compliance with wage and labor laws are important

Δ

components to our obligation and our mission to build and maintain affordable housing. And we are continually looking for ways to strengthen our procedures so that we can ensure compliance on the jobs. So thank you for the opportunity to testify, for your interest in and partnership on these issues and I welcome your questions and any suggestions that you have about strengthening our, our systems. So thank you.

CHAIRPERSON WILLIAMS: Thank you for your testimony. We're also joined by Council Member Barron. And we were briefly joined by Council Member Johnson who I believe is chairing another hearing. Thank you for your testimony. I do have a few questions but first I wanted to see if you can walk through the RFP process, just how it works... any, anything you can tell me about how you designed the RFP, is it HPD that puts out the RFP and then reviews it... how does that whole process work?

VICKI BEEN: Okay. I'm happy to do that but I wanted, I want to make sure that we're clear on the distinction. So in our RFP process we are, so we use RFP processes when we own the land and we

2

3

5

6

8

9

10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

22

23

24

25

are disposing of that land. That is a fraction of the 400 odd deals that we do in a year. Most of the time a, an owner is coming to us either with land or with a building and we do not in that instance go through an RFP process. So we're only using the RFP process where we are disposing of city owned land okay. So when we're disposing of city owned land we go through an RFP process that basically is intended to make sure that we're getting competitive bids both in terms of the, the financing of the project, what the project would provide, the design of the project so our RFP process for example will... let me, let me, actually let me not use that one because I don't think we've announced the winners yet so let me not use that one. But, but let's say if we have a piece of land and we're RFP-ing that land then we say we want, you know we envision that a bear minimum is this set aside, this number of units of affordable housing, these income levels, we, we think it's really critically important in this neighborhood that there be community facility space or enhanced retail or that kind of thing. But then we, we put the, we put the RFP out and ask people to bring us

VICKI BEEN: Mm-hmm.

24

4

5

6

7

9

10

1112

13

14 15

16

17

18 19

20

22

21

23

24

25

CHAIRPERSON WILLIAMS: ...I'm going to ask anyway. Are there opportunities in our writing to favor MWBEs, to discuss union/non-union in the writing of the, of the RFP itself?

VICKI BEEN: So in the RFP process now we specify that we, obviously that we do not discriminate in any way and that we have, and that we very much welcome MWBEs right, minority and women business owned enterprises. In addition we have one RFP as part, as, as you know we rolled out a very sensitive MWBE program where we asked MWBEs to respond to what we call and RFQ or request for qualifications and if they qualify and go on that preapproved list then they are the only ones allowed to bid on a dedicated pipeline of projects. And the idea behind that is to help MWBEs sort of gain more experience so they're more competitive in general on RFPs. So for that particular MWBE program we have a dedicated pipeline that is dedicated to MWBEs on our prequalified list.

CHAIRPERSON WILLIAMS: And prevailing wage, union, are there ways that you can use RFP to make sure that that's happening, well maybe not union but at least prevailing wage?

Л

VICKI BEEN: Well if we anticipate that the funds would trigger prevailing wage we would specify that in the RFP.

CHAIRPERSON WILLIAMS: Because I just, getting more information...

VICKI BEEN: Mm-hmm.

told some of folks who been... one of the reasons that the state has been doing much better, unfortunately city is still pretty dismal, but the state is doing much better is because they did some reworking of the RFPs. And I don't know if you have heard anything like that. Are you, are you looking into what the state to see how we can do better on some of them?

VICKI BEEN: Well we did look in, we extensively looked into what the state does I designing the MWBE program that I mentioned. And we, I, I understand that the, you're talking about the averages for the state programs and the averages for the city programs but we believe we have the most extensive MWBE program in the nation. We're the only ones in the nation that have the prequalified list and the dedicated pipeline. We

Τ	COMMITTEE ON HOUSING AND BUILDINGS 70
2	just I think as you know graduated our first class
3	through a, a special year long course that we
4	offered to MWBEs. So we actually think we're doing
5	you know more than the state is doing in terms of,
6	of similar kinds of things right, similar
7	development projects.
8	CHAIRPERSON WILLIAMS: Where, I, I have
9	a slight different perception but again it's, we're
10	going to hopefully go deeper in the, to those
11	questions in some additional hearings. Now you said
12	that that, they do RFP process in the city owned
13	land and
14	VICKI BEEN: Mm-hmm.
15	CHAIRPERSON WILLIAMS:what if it's
16	non-city owned land.
17	VICKI BEEN: If it's not city owned land
18	then the owner comes to us and asks us if we would
19	be willing to help finance the project in exchange
20	for the housing being affordable. So we can't, they
21	own the land. We can't
22	CHAIRPERSON WILLIAMS: Okay.
23	VICKI BEEN:let somebody else do the

work on the land if they own it.

legal authority to oversee the ...

VICKI BEEN: Yes.

25

22

23

CHAIRPERSON WILLIAMS: Okay. Through the active monitoring and... So even though there's no direct legal...

VICKI BEEN: Contractual relationship there's a regulatory relationship, yes.

CHAIRPERSON WILLIAMS: Okay.

VICKI BEEN: Mm-hmm.

CHAIRPERSON WILLIAMS: Now where I get confused is sometimes I heard that, and I want to be clear if they do something wrong...

VICKI BEEN: Mm-hmm.

CHAIRPERSON WILLIAMS: ...can HPD bar them from, bar the sponsor from hiring them if city funds are being used.

VICKI BEEN: Okay so I wanted, so this has been confusing and so let me unpack it. Okay so the word debar to me means we say you cannot be on any HPD jobs you know for some period of time or forever right? We do not believe, or we have been advised by legal counsel that if all we are doing is saying you are debarred by the federal government or you were debarred by the state government therefore we automatically debar you

24

1

2

3

5

6

8

9

10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

22

5

6

7

8

9

10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

22

23

24

25

from any HPD job in the future that we do not have the legal authority to do that. Okay. That's...

CHAIRPERSON WILLIAMS: Say that one more time.

VICKI BEEN: So to me debar means saying across the board we will not do business with you period because of the fact that you were debarred by the federal government or by the state government right? We have been advised by legal counsel that we do not have the authority to do that, that we are preempted from doing that okay? That's debarment okay? However when we look at any sponsor or ay contractor we are looking for all of, I mean one of the questions that we ask is have you ever been debarred and we ask for all kinds of violation, you know the entire history of any violations etcetera. And we take those violations into account in deciding whether or not to go forward on an individual project by project basis with that sponsor. So the distinction that I'm drawing is do we automatically say don't even bother to come in the door, we will never consider doing business with you because you were debarred by a federal or state government versus we will

don't bother because you are completely debarred

COMMITTEE ON HOUSING AND BUILDINGS

forever on the basis of your federal or state

debarment. But we can look project by project,

situation by situation and on that basis say well

you do not have the integrity or we are not sure

that you will follow the construction quality or

labor law or construction law and therefore we are

not doing business with you on this project.

CHIAR: Are you, so that, does that also go for principal owners of the contracting company or is that only for the company itself?

 $\label{eq:VICKI BEEN: All of our processes are} % \end{substantial}$ both the company and the principals.

of any companies now or principals of companies that have been found to violate wages or labor laws that currently still have HPD money in their projects, have received contracts through sponsors that all have a contract with HPD??

VICKI BEEN: I'm sorry so the, is, so is the question are we doing or have we done business with somebody who has been debarred?

CHAIRPERSON WILLIAMS: That's one question. And are, are you doing business with

people who are known to have stolen wages, stolen wages in the past?

1

2

3

5

6

8

9

10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

22

23

24

25

VICKI BEEN: So... okay let me separate those out. Do we... I am not aware of... So as... let me go back. So these are the criteria that will put somebody on our enhanced review list. And one of the criteria of course is a debarment. So it is theoretically possible that we have done business with somebody who is on enhanced review who has been debarred. I know of no such person but I will get back to you to confirm if there's somebody beyond my knowledge right. On the labor violations there are people on the enhanced review, on the enhanced review list who we are subjecting to enhanced review who have been found, who have been found to owe money for past labor law violations right. Not, I'm sorry, who have been found, who have been, who have had withholdings but they will have paid them before we will go, do business with them. So in other words, I'm sorry, I, that, that, there was a lot in that sentence. There are people on our enhanced review list who have been found to have not paid their appropriate wages and therefore had withholdings against them right. We, before we

1

3

5

6

8

9

10

11 12

13

14 15

16

17

18

19 20

21

22

23

24

25

will do business with them we will require that those withholdings have been paid right.

CHAIRPERSON WILLIAMS: Why would we not consider the fact that they have stolen the wages in the past be one of the things that we consider whether they should be on the contract again?

VICKI BEEN: It is something that we consider. It is something that we absolutely consider. And so if we know that somebody has in the past had a labor law violation or prevailing wage violation we will have a discussion with them and we will review what was wrong with your procedures then that allowed that to happen, how have you fixed them, what are you doing that, so that, to assure us that that would never happen again. We absolutely do that.

CHAIRPERSON WILLIAMS: Okay. But so for clarity there... are there, are there contractors now that have stolen wages that are currently in contract with a sponsor who HPD has a contractual relationship with? Are they on jobs now that they get HPD funds?

VICKI BEEN: So many, most, many times, I'm not sure most but I think most the labor law

1	COMMITTEE ON HOUSING AND BUILDINGS 78
2	violations or the prevailing wage violations have
3	been with subcontractors right. So that's the
4	issue. So are there people, are there, are there
5	jobs in which there is a subcontractor who has in,
6	sometime in the past been found guilty of a labor
7	law violation, yes I believe that there are.
8	CHAIRPERSON WILLIAMS: How
9	VICKI BEEN: Again
10	CHAIRPERSON WILLIAMS:how are we
11	holding those So you're saying if they're on a job
12	now they have paid back all of their wages that
13	they owed before, even a subcontract
14	VICKI BEEN: Yes. Mm-hmm. If we knew
15	that a subcontractor had not paid a past labor law
16	violation we would
17	[background comments]
18	VICKI BEEN: Right, we would not go
19	forward.
20	CHAIRPERSON WILLIAMS: So there's a few
21	companies that have been thought to owe wages and
22	may actually have been proven to owe wages, I think
23	MDG Design is one. I was told Mountco and Lettire.

Are those familiar to you?

1	COMMITTEE ON HOUSING AND BUILDINGS 79
2	VICKI BEEN: Can you repeat the
3	question? That
4	CHAIRPERSON WILLIAMS: There are some
5	that are either reported or have been proven to
6	have wage theft in their history
7	VICKI BEEN: Mm-hmm.
8	CHAIRPERSON WILLIAMS:and to name a
9	few MDG Design, Lettire…
10	VICKI BEEN: Mm-hmm.
11	CHAIRPERSON WILLIAMS:and Mountco.
12	VICKI BEEN: Yes. Mm-hmm.
13	CHAIRPERSON WILLIAMS: Are you familiar
14	with them?
15	VICKI BEEN: Yes I am.
16	CHAIRPERSON WILLIAMS: So have, do you,
17	are they currently on jobs now?
18	VICKI BEEN: Yes they are.
19	CHAIRPERSON WILLIAMS: And they have
20	been proven to have wage theft in their history?
21	VICKI BEEN: In the past, mm-hmm.
22	CHAIRPERSON WILLIAMS: So why are they
23	currently on
24	VICKI BEEN: Because in discussions with
25	them and in reviewing their processes we discussed

issue. If they are found to have, have done a labor

Т	COMMITTEE ON HOUSING AND BUILDINGS 81
2	law violation to have violated the labor laws and
3	owe money I will not go forward with them, we will
4	not go forward with them until they have made good
5	on that. If we found out after going forward with
6	somebody that then, then have wages, I mean then a
7	fine was imposed or withholding was imposed we
8	would, we would not let them go forward until they
9	paid that, correct? That is correct.
10	CHAIRPERSON WILLIAMS: I am concerned
11	that the only thing they would have to do is repay
12	the back owed wages
13	VICKI BEEN: Mm-hmm.
14	CHAIRPERSON WILLIAMS:and, and make I
15	guess a promissory note that they won't do it
16	again. Because all that says to me is that I have
17	to do it until I get caught then pay it back and
18	I'll be okay. So why would we not hold anyone even
19	as an example and say because you did this
20	VICKI BEEN: Mm-hmm.
21	CHAIRPERSON WILLIAMS:you're not
22	someone that the city should work with on this

particular project or even the next particular

23

24

project?

VICKI BEEN: I'm, that's a very valid question. It's one that we've wrestled with a lot. And so the issue for us is there are people who do a very very good job on the affordable housing who have made a mistake or who have you know not sufficiently monitored their subcontractors, not sufficiently you know turned a blind eye when they should have seen that something was going wrong. They have made a mistake. And to us the issue is do we not do business with them forever or do we say this is really, has to be cleaned up, has to be rectified, and if we believe that they are making, that they are taking the steps to rectify that and to clean it up to give them another chance. If it happens repeatedly then we're done. That's enhanced review and then we're done right. Again on a project by project basis. CHAIRPERSON WILLIAMS: Has anybody been on enhanced review that you subsequently had said you're not going to work or you have worked with authorities to bring criminal action?

1

2

3

5

6

8

9

10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

22

23

24

25

VICKI BEEN: Thank you. I'll probably have some questions after my co-chair and my colleagues. And to my colleagues I know, I just

their own experience of wage theft are not listed

VICKI BEEN: That said ...

24

1	COMMITTEE ON HOUSING AND BUILDINGS 86
2	CO-CHAIRPERSON ROSENTHAL:let's go
3	back
4	VICKI BEEN: Mm-hmm.
5	CO-CHAIRPERSON ROSENTHAL:while you're
6	saying that because I want to catch up with you.
7	The sponsors are people that you've signed off on?
8	VICKI BEEN: No. The sponsors are the
9	owners of the properties.
10	CO-CHAIRPERSON ROSENTHAL: And the
11	sponsors, is there a list of sponsors you won't
12	work with because they contract with this, with bad
13	actor
14	VICKI BEEN: Well a sponsor can be on
15	our enhanced review list right.
16	CO-CHAIRPERSON ROSENTHAL: Okay so are
17	VICKI BEEN: So
18	CO-CHAIRPERSON ROSENTHAL:any of the
19	sponsors who chose Lettire on your enhanced review
20	list? Sorry I'm catching up to you. I know it
21	sounds like it's a complicated process.
22	VICKI BEEN: Yeah. Okay. So I'm sorry I,
23	I'm, I misspoke on… But let me, let me…
24	CO-CHAIRPERSON ROSENTHAL: That's okay.

COMMITTEE ON HOUSING AND BUILDINGS

with one subcontractor does SCA know that that
subcontractor is a subcontractor...

VICKI BEEN: Mm-hmm.

1

5

6

8

9

10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

22

23

24

25

CO-CHAIRPERSON ROSENTHAL: ...that has engaged in wage theft. So all those things are my concern.

VICKI BEEN: Okay. So, so there's a lot packed in there. Let me try to untangle it. So I misspoke on, when, so the owner of the property is the sponsor. And for those we do the sponsor review that I indicated. There are people who do not pass sponsor review. I do not publish a list of those. Those are property owners that you know come to us and say we have a piece of property and we, if we don't think that they are outstanding people that we would want to work with we do not do business with them. We don't publish a list of them. We can consider doing that but it's, you know but they are like I own you know 2570 you know 1st Avenue, whatever, and I'd like to use it as affordable housing and we say after sponsor review no thank you right. Okay so then there are the then, but if we approve a sponsor the sponsor contracts with a general contractor and the general contractor you

know sponsors with the subcontractors. When we put a general contractor or a subcontractor on our enhanced review list that is public information right. So and my understanding is that other agencies within the city are also checking our enhanced review list. In fact I've had discussions with other agencies about people on our enhanced review list right. So I think that information is getting shared. What, what I think we are frustrated by and I think is, is, is something that is very much needed across the city and the state is that we find it very difficult if somebody had a prevailing wage violation with let's say the school construction authority we don't necessarily find that out because there is no centralized database of prevailing wage violations. Somebody can see that somebody has gotten on our enhanced review list because of a prevailing wage violation but there's no central database of all prevailing wage violations across the city, state, or federal government. That is something that we find very frustrating and we would, you know I think that is an area where progress could be made.

1

2

3

5

6

8

9

10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

22

23

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

22

23

24

25

monitoring, etcetera.

your general contractor hires this subcontractor you are going to be, you're under enhanced review. This is going to be watched carefully. In many cases the sponsor will say no thanks I won't go forward right. If they do go forward with somebody who is on our enhanced review list then we subject that contractor or general, that contractor or subcontractor to one of the, to the kinds of conditions that I mentioned earlier, either extra

CO-CHAIRPERSON ROSENTHAL: So is the sponsor who in 2000, in, I'm going to make this up right, a couple months before June 2014...

VICKI BEEN: Okay. So, so I'm told that

we have, we have referred 11 contractors to DOI but

4 I don't have it broken down in the yearly way that

5 you have it broken down. We're happy to... [cross-

6 | talk]

1

9

10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

22

23

7 CO-CHAIRPERSON ROSENTHAL: Could you

8 break it down for us by year?

VICKI BEEN: Okay.

CO-CHAIRPERSON ROSENTHAL: And how many have been, what do you know about the outcome after you refer it to DOI?

VICKI BEEN: So once we refer something to DOI we frequently go through a period of time when we don't know what's going on because their criminal investigation is proceeding. And in some instances DOI or other law enforcement officer, or other law enforcement agencies ask us to back off, to let them do their criminal investigation.

CO-CHAIRPERSON ROSENTHAL: And during that time would you ever let a new contract go out to that... Would you, how do you prevent a sponsor from hiring that contractor or subcontractor...

VICKI BEEN: So I...

1	COMMITTEE ON HOUSING AND BUILDINGS 94
2	CO-CHAIRPERSON ROSENTHAL:during that
3	time period?
4	VICKI BEEN: I cannot publish a list of
5	our referrals to DOI because that would compromise
6	their investigation. So I cannot publish that, that
7	is true. So as soon as
8	CO-CHAIRPERSON ROSENTHAL: So there's no
9	way a sponsor would know not to hire this firm?
10	VICKI BEEN: Would not, would know that
11	there is a DOI invest, or other law enforcement
12	action proceeding they would not know that. They
13	would know about the past. They would know that the
14	person was on enhanced review but they would not
15	CO-CHAIRPERSON ROSENTHAL: Right.
16	VICKI BEEN:know
17	CO-CHAIRPERSON ROSENTHAL: That it's
18	been ramped up to DOI.
19	VICKI BEEN: They would not know
20	[cross-talk]
21	CO-CHAIRPERSON ROSENTHAL: Do you know
22	how many times
23	VICKI BEEN: I'd know of no way that
24	they would know that. Let's [cross-talk]

were, sorry I was trying to... [cross-talk] stay with

CO-CHAIRPERSON ROSENTHAL: Well...

23

24

25

we do look at those now.

2 VICKI BEEN: But, but to your broader

3 question...

1

5

6

8

9

10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

22

23

24

25

CO-CHAIRPERSON ROSENTHAL: Yeah.

VICKI BEEN: If we had more people on sponsor review we do every, we never move forward until we have completed sponsor review. If we had more people maybe that would go faster. But it wouldn't, I don't think it would weed out any more people because we do a very thorough sponsor review on those it just takes a while because of, of our staffing. In terms of labor monitoring if we had more people in the field making unannounced visits, that kind of thing, would it make a difference... you know I would assume it would make a difference, I can't quantify exactly what difference that would make right an whether there some you know marginal value, you know some margin after which having more people doesn't make a difference I, I don't know that. And lastly your current list of contractors under enhanced review is 26 total. Could you give me a sense of perspective? Is that a big number? Is that a little number? What's your total number of contractors and subcontractors that are used? I mean...

1	COMMITTEE ON HOUSING AND BUILDINGS 100
2	CO-CHAIRPERSON ROSENTHAL:you don't
3	know I, I'm wondering as a proportion of the
4	companies that are used what proportion is the 26.
5	So maybe you can get back to me on that. I don't
6	VICKI BEEN: Okay of all contractors
7	and [cross-talk]
8	CO-CHAIRPERSON ROSENTHAL:400 yeah.
9	VICKI BEEN:of all contractors. I'm
10	not even sure we could even compile for
11	subcontractors because we… yeah.
12	CO-CHAIRPERSON ROSENTHAL: I mean there
13	should be some list of
14	VICKI BEEN: Yeah.
15	CO-CHAIRPERSON ROSENTHAL:contract.
16	VICKI BEEN: Okay. So we'll get that to
17	you.
18	CO-CHAIRPERSON ROSENTHAL: Do you keep a
19	list of contractors and subcontractors that the
20	sponsor is working with?
21	VICKI BEEN: Well
22	CO-CHAIRPERSON ROSENTHAL: If [cross-
23	talk]
24	VICKI BEEN: Certainly the contractor.

Do we know every subcontractor that a, that a

24 VICKI BEEN: Mm-hmm.

23

sidewalk...

_

2.4

CHAIRPERSON WILLIAMS: And then we have people who are stealing wages, lots of wages, and also people who are providing unsafe conditions for some of those same people in my district to work in.

VICKI BEEN: Mm-hmm.

they get put on a time out and they can get put right back in, into the game. That is a, I, I can't, I'm trying to wrap my head around that because it seems like nothing happens to them. And then when we try to decriminalize some of these lesser offenses the paper puts on blast as if we're mentioning something that's crazy.

VICKI BEEN: Mm-hmm.

talking about these folks I think in the same way who are just robbing and stealing and destroying peoples' lives and putting people in danger. And we have to find a way to punish them, to prevent them from doing it again and from other people doing it again. And I'm not sure that that's what's happening here in the way that we have it set up. So one of the reasons it sounded like that we do

2 this I guess is a time out and then you come back

3 is that they do good work and I guess have a

4 | competency that some folks may, may not have. Is

5 that in fact what it is? Is it some of these folks

6 that have been proven to steal wages have a... that,

7 competency level that other contractors and

8 subcontractors don't have and thus we're forced to

9 | work with them?

10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

22

23

24

25

VICKI BEEN: So, so I want to be clear. I mean what, what you call a time out is a punishment. If they're not being given jobs which is their livelihood they are losing money. And people who have been on our enhanced review list and have not lived up to their commitments and we have refused to do business with them have lost millions, tens of millions of dollars. So that is a punishment. And those records do remain right. So, and that's what we're checking when we check for example sponsor review and that kind of thing. So but, but to your question of well why do we ever do business with them it's really a function of I think three things. One is a belief that I, that I would certainly share about many issues of wrongdoing is that you know we're not willing to

2

3

5

6

8

9

10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

22

23

gotten it back together.

say once you've made a mistake you can never be rehabilitated right. So that's one thing. A second thing is we do not have you know so many firms doing affordable housing work that we don't have a surplus of, of firms. We are trying very hard to attract additional talent into the area, to train additional talent. That's as I said the, the MWBE course and things like that. We're trying to attract developers and contractors from outside of the city to come in. So we are trying to expand the range of people who will work on our jobs. The third thing is that yes there are people who we believe made a mistake, we believe that they can correct those mistakes and avoid mistakes in the future and who do a good job on the affordable housing. We have had people on the enhanced review list who have shown that they have completely gotten their act together, they've put in internal systems, that kind of thing and eventually have gotten, have even gotten off of the enhanced review list because they have you know shown that they've

1	COMMITTEE ON HOUSING AND BUILDINGS 105
2	CHAIRPERSON WILLIAMS: So, so one it
3	does seem like the pool of competent contractors is
4	an issue and I'd like to
5	VICKI BEEN: Mm-hmm.
6	CHAIRPERSON WILLIAMS:not now but I
7	want to actually dig that a little deeper
8	VICKI BEEN: Uh-huh.
9	CHAIRPERSON WILLIAMS:with my housing
10	staff.
11	VICKI BEEN: Absolutely.
12	CHAIRPERSON WILLIAMS: Two But in
13	theory I can steal money until I get caught, pay it
14	back, get on the enhanced review list, get some
15	jobs, do everything right then steal again, pay it
16	back, get on the
17	VICKI BEEN: No.
18	CHAIRPERSON WILLIAMS:enhanced review
19	list.
20	VICKI BEEN: No you absolutely cannot do
21	that.
22	CHAIRPERSON WILLIAMS: Okay. So what
23	happens?
24	VICKI BEEN: If you're on my enhanced,
25	if you're on the enhanced review list and you steal

authority to do this would you support legislation

-

that says that you can't do business for a defined amount of time or defined amount of projects as a form of punishing them for the action they did whether it's five years...

VICKI BEEN: Mm-hmm.

CHAIRPERSON WILLIAMS: ...few years, seven projects, something like that? Would you support something like that? So that they can rehabilitated in that time but in the time period they would not be able to...

VICKI BEEN: So I, I think the difference between the approach that you're proposing and the approach that we have goes back to your, your time out example. My, my kids are older so they don't get time outs although they sometimes still need them but, but I think that's a good analogy. We don't give time outs. We say show us that you've fixed whatever it was, whatever the problem was that led to this happening. You know you didn't pay your wage, you didn't pay your workers the wages that they were due. Show us why that happened. Show us that you've figured out why it happens so that you're aware of it and you know what went wrong. And show us that you're going to

 $\label{like-a} \mbox{CHAIRPERSON WILLIAMS: It sounds like a} \\ \mbox{restorative justice model that I wish was applied} \\ \mbox{other places.}$

VICKI BEEN: Yep. Yep.

19

20

21

22

23

24

25

CHAIRPERSON WILLIAMS: But it, it seems to me if someone from my community gets caught hopping the train they're not allowed to then pay the fair without something happen to them,

2 something punitive happens. They get a summons.

3 | They can get arrested.

5

6

8

9

10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

22

23

24

25

VICKI BEEN: Mm-hmm.

CHAIRPERSON WILLIAMS: So I just want to repeat the question and know if you would support the legislation the way I framed it or you would not support the legislation the way I framed it?

VICKI BEEN: I would want to talk with you about making sure that the legislation focused on showing that you... The, the difference between the person jumping the turn style or jumping on the, not paying the fair and the situation here is that it's often a question because remember I'm primarily dealing with the sponsor and the general contractor and they are dealing with the subcontractor. So what I need to see from them is do you have appropriate management, do you have appropriate record keeping, do you have appropriate enforcement of your subcontractors right. And that's what I'm trying to do through enhanced review is to make sure. Show me that you've got the internal controls in place, that you've got, you know that you're monitoring your subcontractors to make sure that they are paying the wages that they,

1 COMMITTEE ON HOUSING AND BUILDINGS 110
2 that they pay. So I'd want to work with you to make
3 sure that we were focusing on have we put the, has
4 whoever has a problem in the past, have they put
5 procedures, monitoring, etcetera in place so that
6 it doesn't happen again with, with their

contractors or their subcontractors.

CHAIRPERSON WILLIAMS: I, I have no problem with enhanced review. But I'm just saying you should ask those questions after the punishment has been meaded [phonetic] out. So I wouldn't mind asking those questions after a few years that they have not been allowed to participate and then go ahead with that enhanced review. Maybe like a halfway house type thing where you can help them get back into society properly. So I'm just wondering, so yes you would support it or no you wouldn't?

 $\label{eq:VICKI BEEN: I would support it with amendments.}$

CHAIRPERSON WILLIAMS: I see. Thank you.

I just want to know if you have heard of any of
these companies that were brought up by the workers
that worked, I mean that testified earlier. There
was, Auringer family, A U R I N G E R, Thomas David

3

5

6

8

9

10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

22

23

24

25

met with.

CHAIRPERSON WILLIAMS: Okay.

VICKI BEEN: Okay. We can, we can see if we can figure that out. They did not file complaints. They took forms with us and they took forms with them and informed us that they were going to return with the documents and the paystubs that would, you know that would show us what they were talking about. They did not return. The, the compliance officer reached, reached out to them but at least two of them... I'm sorry... on two separate occasions and at least, at least two of the workers stated that they were still on strike against the companies, that they were, but that they had been paid correctly on HPD projects as opposed to other projects although they did complain of excessive hours on the, I'm not sure whether that was on the HPD project or on other projects. So that is our, that has been our record with, with that company. It goes, again it goes back to what I was mentioning in my testimony is that you know we, we are stein mead in many cases by the workers' quite, quite obviously understandable reluctance in some

subcontractors right? And so with for example since

you raised Lettire we met with them extensively.

24

5

6

8

9

10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

22

23

24

25

They showed us the kinds of internal controls that they were putting into place. They showed us the, the measures that they were going to take to make sure that subcontractors that they used paid the appropriate wages. I don't recall all the details of the internal controls although we're happy to you know go back and review the records and, and discuss that with you. But, and, and also I'm reminded that they have a external third party monitor on all of their jobs to make sure that, that that takes place.

CHAIRPERSON WILLIAMS: Who chooses that third party monitor?

VICKI BEEN: We do. Although they pay for them. That is part of the punishment as opposed to the time out.

CHAIRPERSON WILLIAMS: Alright it just, oh, oh we've been joined by Council Member Torres. It's, I mean I, most of the times when this, things happen I don't think it's simple mistakes. I think it's planned criminal behavior. And we're not treating these people as criminals. And so that's what irritates me a little bit. But I have some additional questions. I'm going to go to my

COUNCIL MEMBER CROWLEY: Thank you to both our co-chairs. Commissioner I'm very sensitive to the need of affordable housing. I have far too many constituents living in apartments unable to pay their rent or falling victim to homelessness.

VICKI BEEN: Mm-hmm.

COUNCIL MEMBER CROWLEY: I do not believe that letting contractors run wild padding their pockets by exploiting workers is the answer to more housing development.

VICKI BEEN: Couldn't agree more.

COUNCIL MEMBER CROWLEY: I see time and time again this corruption that's happening not just under your leadership but has happened continuously since I've been in the council. We've had contractors that have been accused of exploiting workers. The HPD says we'll let you prove yourself so you know that's strike one. If you're found two then we let you redeem yourself. That's strike two. If you're found guilty then you are put on enhanced review. That's strike three.

want to know with certainty can you say that none of the contractors that are getting new

contractors, that are getting new contracts from

state to tell you who bad contractors are. And

earlier I didn't hear an answer to a question and I

21

22

through the list and, and provide you with that

COMMITTEE ON HOUSING AND BUILDINGS

1

24

25

information.

COUNCIL MEMBER CROWLEY: Well I have information saying they do. And that even though you have found them, HPD, in enhanced review has found that Mountco owed 600 thousand.

VICKI BEEN: Mm-hmm.

them an independent contractor, an independent monitor to make sure that they were adhering to paying the wages they were supposed to. And then when they had that independent monitor it was found that they had another 800 thousand in wage theft. So after being found guilty of stealing 600 thousand with the independent monitor they found that they were getting 800 thousand stolen, that's just Mountco. Lettire, they were found to owe 960, 960 thousand dollars in wage theft. And they just got a recent contract.

VICKI BEEN: Mm-hmm.

COUNCIL MEMBER CROWLEY: From HPD. And they still haven't finished paying off what they owe. And all we're looking for is basic quarterly wage reports. That's the law that we passed in the council not once but twice. And we have a new administration. We understand the bad practices of

that information. We don't want contractors to tell

on these job sites?

us what they're paying their employees, employees
right. So we don't want contractors or
subcontractors telling us what they're paying that
the previous mayor thought and lost. Now this mayor
is doing much of the same. Is that true that this
mayor doesn't want these contractors and
subcontractors telling the council and the public
what employees, what workers, laborers are making

VICKI BEEN: Council Member I am the housing commissioner. I am not the corp council so I, you know, you'll have to ask that question of the corp council.

that requires the disclosure, the name, address, principal owners of developers, contractors, subcontractors the manner in which the developers were selected including whether they were prequalified or disqualified from lists in the process, information about the project size, location, number of units. It's basic information. We're not asking too much. We want to know also what wages are, are getting paid. I just don't understand why a progressive administration would

information is telling me differently.

COMMITTEE ON HOUSING AND BUILDINGS

1

outstanding...

1	COMMITTEE ON HOUSING AND BUILDINGS 123
2	COUNCIL MEMBER CROWLEY: But like
3	specifically when your independent monitor was
4	working with Mountco, Mountco? Construction
5	VICKI BEEN: Right, Mm-hmm.
6	COUNCIL MEMBER CROWLEY:after they
7	were found to steal
8	CHAIRPERSON WILLIAMS: Council Member we
9	got
10	COUNCIL MEMBER CROWLEY:had stolen
11	600
12	CHAIRPERSON WILLIAMS:you, your
13	COUNCIL MEMBER CROWLEY:your
14	independent monitor said 800
15	CHAIRPERSON WILLIAMS:a lot past time
16	so
17	COUNCIL MEMBER CROWLEY:thousand, is
18	that true?
19	VICKI BEEN: So, so that
20	COUNCIL MEMBER CROWLEY: Did that
21	happen?
22	VICKI BEEN: Let me… yep, well I don't
23	know about the exact number of the 800 thousand but
24	when we had, when we received complaints about the
25	sugar hill, you're talking about the Sugar Hill

COMMITTEE ON HOUSING AND BUILDINGS 124
project right? When we received complaints about
the Sugar Hill project we immediately turned it
over to the DOI. The Department of Investigation
then said we are going to investigate this. We are
in the middle of criminal, of a criminal
investigation and you need to back off. And that is
what we did. As you know the DOI recently filed
criminal charges against
COUNCIL MEMBER CROWLEY: But just, just
VICKI BEEN:the subcontractor
involved.
COUNCIL MEMBER CROWLEY:for the record
was that strike one, strike two, or strike three?
CHAIRPERSON WILLIAMS: You don't have to
answer any more commissioner. Thank you Council
Member. I did want to follow-up on one thing that
Council Member Crowley mentioned. That Lettire
hasn't paid back what they owed. So have they or
have they not paid back what they owed?
VICKI BEEN: We will double check that.
It is our policy that if they owe something we will

24 But we will double check that. And any information

1 COMMITTEE ON HOUSING AND BUILDINGS that you have that can be helpful for us please, 2 3 please let us know. CHAIRPERSON WILLIAMS: And Council 5 Member Crowley if you have any information about money that they owe I would, I would love to still 6 see it. 8 CO-CHAIRPERSON ROSENTHAL: Commissioner 9 but from what we talked about a minute ago you 10 wouldn't know because a sponsor could hire one of the subcontractors on your enhanced list... the only 11 way you would know is if your sponsors had to give 12 you all the time the name of their contractors and 13 their subcontractors. So I don't know how you could 14 15 answer Councilwoman Crowley's question if you're 16 not currently getting a list from your sponsors of the contractors and subcontractors. 17 VICKI BEEN: I know the contractors. And 18 19 I thought her question was about Lettire the 20 contractor. Did I... CO-CHAIRPERSON ROSENTHAL: Well yes but ... 21 VICKI BEEN: But your point, your point 22 is well taken that if we are not informed of all of

the subcontractors then yes I do not know them, I

23

24

	COMMITTEE ON HOUSING AND BUILDINGS 12.
2	This, what we have to deal with wage theft I do no
3	think is appropriate for the criminality that is
4	occurring which probably daily in our construction
5	in the city. And we, this is not enough. So we got
6	to figure out how to make it better and actually
7	have some teeth to it. But I have another question
8	but you did have something you wanted to say.
9	VICKI BEEN: So I, I wanted to, to say
10	it on Council Member Crowley's discussion about
11	Local Law 44. We are, we have published the
12	mandated Local Law 44 information since January
13	2014. We published the city financial assistance,
14	the building data such as the stories, the square
15	footage, the commercial square footage that she
16	mentioned, the rents income affordability by unit,
17	the development team information including all
18	owners and officers, the developer selection
19	method, and any construction quality complaints.
20	The issue in the notice of appeal is only with the
21	wage reporting requirement.
22	CHAIRPERSON WILLIAMS: With, with M,

23 with MDG...

VICKI BEEN: Mm-hmm.

COMMITTEE ON HOUSING AND BUILDINGS

2 CHAIRPERSON WILLIAMS: So I got it

3 forward in one of the news releases from June 2014.

4 So they were busted by the feds in June for wage

5 | theft of about five million dollars. And then I

6 | believe we gave them a contract I guess in April of

7 | 2015. Do you know if they've paid back the five

8 | million dollars?

VICKI BEEN: Just one second. So again the reason why there's confusion is the difference between the contractor and the subcontractor. So my understanding is that a subcontractor of MDG owes that money. And so that, you know that goes back to the basic question. Our relationship is with the sponsor, the sponsor's relationship is with the general contractor, and how do we ensure all up that chain that the subcontractors of which there are many are behaving as they should be behaving. And so what we have tried on, we monitor the contractors very carefully and try to make sure that they have the internal contractors but..

CHAIRPERSON WILLIAMS: I mean I would say Council Member's, Crowley's insistence on the legislation we passed...

going up.

COUNCIL MEMBER MILLER: Right. So let me ask you about your LMU and, and, and what that division staffing looks like.

VICKI BEEN: Mm-hmm. So the LMU has both inspectors who go out into the field and then also let me get you the exact breakdown. So we, we have 15 employees in LMU. The annual budget is 928 million, 928... sorry, 928 thousand dollars and that is, we've increased by 50 percent the number of employees devoted to labor monitoring since 2010. So we now have 15.

COUNCIL MEMBER MILLER: So was 15 specifically devoted to these 400 or so projects?

VICKI BEEN: So labor monitoring focuses on prevailing wage jobs. Prevailing wage are about 10 percent of our jobs so about four, well it's not even 40 jobs but in any given jobs there are about 40 jobs because there are year, there are you know rarely is a job finished in one year so we have about 12 prevailing wage jobs each year but in any given time there are about 40 being monitored.

COUNCIL MEMBER MILLER: So who is responsible for the other jobs that the other 90 percent of the jobs that we want to make sure that,

that if I own a business and I, whomever I contract with obviously I, I assume those liabilities across the board whether it's a, it's a general, it's a subcontractor, or whatever and it appears here that, that sponsors are given somewhat of a free ride in this process. And I understand that some of this stuff is inherited and there's been a lot of discussion about past legislation and what we can do in the future. How do we kind of wrap ourselves around a process that ensures that we protect the rights and the integrity of workers but also of what we're trying to do here? From the... how do we quantify that, that sponsors can legitimately do what they say they're going to do if in fact we don't know who they're hiring, what their record is, what their ability to perform is in advance? VICKI BEEN: So we do know that, we do know that about the contractors that sponsors hire right. Where we don't know on non-prevailing wage jobs is the subcontractors that the contractor hires right. So it, it, so is your question should sponsors have legal liability for the misdeeds of

24 | the subcontractor?

COUNCIL MEMBER MILLER: Absolutely.

25

1

2

3

5

6

7

8

9

10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

22

2 VICKI BEEN: That's a huge issue and a huge change in the law right.

because it appears that there is no, you know I could say that... how do we know that, so that a sponsor has not hired multiple bad players? So for instance you caught one and do we record that, that... [cross-talk] Because it, it's... the contractor or the subcontractor but if this person has, or this group has a history of being involved with bad actors does that then reflect upon the, the sponsor?

VICKI BEEN: Yes.

 $\label{eq:council_member_miller:} \mbox{ And how does}$ that happen?

VICKI BEEN: That happens in the, in the sponsor review process. If we, you know when we try to determine their past performance on jobs. And so if we know that a sponsor is you know constantly being you know or has multiple instances where they've hired a contractor who has done something wrong or they've hired a contractor who has subcontractors who have done something wrong then we would not, you know that, that's something that

VICKI BEEN: Mm-hmm.

23 CHAIRPERSON WILLIAMS: Council Member.
24 Council Member.

25

COUNCIL MEMBER MILLER: What, I'm sorry?

refined a little bit because it's, it's a little

2

3

5

6

8

9

10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

22

23

24

25

any, any ideas that you have.

COUNCIL MEMBER MILLER: Oh absolutely.

VICKI BEEN: Thank you.

COUNCIL MEMBER MILLER: Thank you. Thank you Chair.

CHAIRPERSON WILLIAMS: Thank you. So I just wanted to be clear. What is, what, what you can do on a prevailing wage job but you can't do in the other jobs. There was something...

VICKI BEEN: So prevailing wage we, we get the weekly payroll reports and we monitor those payroll reports. So we're checking them against the prevailing wage schedules. So for example if we see on the, on the payroll report that you are paying an engineer at X number of dollars and we see that the prevailing wage is X plus 10 then we see there seems to be a violation here right. If it's not a prevailing wage job then we're not comparing it back to a prevailing wage schedule. We're only comparing it to minimum wage.

COMMITTEE ON HOUSING AND BUILDINGS

subcontractors. So we could in theory do an

intense, that intense sponsor review process for

4 every subcontractor that, to go back to your

5 earlier question about resources that would be a 6 game changer.

CHAIRPERSON WILLIAMS: But you could just do a basic review to see if any of the subcontractors are one of the bad actors that you already know about?

VICKI BEEN: Yes. Mm-hmm.

CHAIRPERSON WILLIAMS: Okay that doesn't sound like it's done now.

VICKI BEEN: I'm not sure that that's...

Do we know the... Got it. Okay so the reason why I'm,

I'm confused about the answer to your question is

in our contracts with the contractor... the, I'm

sorry, in our contracts with the sponsor we require

them to check the enhanced review list and make

sure that they are not using anybody on that

enhanced review list without informing us right. So

that is one check on it. We do not as I said

earlier have a list of everybody who they're using

that we are checking against it. We require them to

had performed satisfactorily on, you know on

24

25

additional jobs.

Τ	COMMITTEE ON HOUSING AND BUILDINGS 142
2	CHAIRPERSON WILLIAMS: Labor meaning a
3	wage or labor dangerous conditions?
4	VICKI BEEN: Wage. Wage withholdings.
5	CHAIRPERSON WILLIAMS: But they can also
6	go in for dangerous conditions?
7	VICKI BEEN: Yes.
8	CHAIRPERSON WILLIAMS: Although this is
9	a wage theft hearing I mean that, that also
10	concerns me. That they may be putting people's
11	lives in danger and then they go on to the time
12	out. And then they fix it. And then they come out
13	again where people could have been hurt. So
14	understand [cross-talk] Yes.
15	VICKI BEEN: Time out with disciplinary
16	consequences.
17	CHAIRPERSON WILLIAMS: Do you know if
18	anyone is on the enhanced review for dangerous
19	conditions where an employee was hurt?
20	VICKI BEEN: No.
21	CHAIRPERSON WILLIAMS: No there isn't or
22	you don't know?
23	VICKI BEEN: No there is not.

	COMMITTEE ON HOUSING AND BUILDINGS 143
2	CHAIRPERSON WILLIAMS: Does there, does
3	department maintain any demographic information on
4	complainants?
5	VICKI BEEN: Demographic information on
6	complainants?
7	CHAIRPERSON WILLIAMS: Yeah people
8	complaining about issues.
9	VICKI BEEN: No I Is that, would that
10	be legal for us to ask that? I'm not, I'd have to
11	check with my lawyers but we do not collect that
12	information.
13	CHAIRPERSON WILLIAMS: And just walk me
14	through really quick if I'm on a job
15	VICKI BEEN: Uh-huh.
16	CHAIRPERSON WILLIAMS:and I make a
17	complaint
18	VICKI BEEN: Uh-huh.
19	CHAIRPERSON WILLIAMS:what happens?
20	VICKI BEEN: So if you are on a job and
21	you make a complaint then our labor monitoring unit
22	would investigate that complaint. And you know
23	depending on what the complaint was would depend on
24	how they would do the investigation. So it would

records. And we then will send randomly we will

send letters to people saying we show that you got

24

COMMITTEE ON HOUSING AND BUILDINGS 145 paid X amount of dollars, is that accurate. If not, let us know.

1

2

3

5

6

7

8

9

10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

22

23

24

25

CHAIRPERSON WILLIAMS: Thank you. My co-chair has anything...

CO-CHAIRPERSON ROSENTHAL: Thank you very much Commissioner Been. I just want to reiterate that it seem, it strikes me that there are a lot of, there's lots of good information that you guys have that I think a broader group of agencies could benefit from. And I'm disappointed that MOCS is not here today to testify on how they capture the information that you have besides it just being posted publically on your website. So to the extent that DDC is contracting, DOT is contracting, you know they have to... and I, I'm sure they, the... there are excellent but they have to proactively look on your list, your enhanced review list to identify whether or not there's a contractor or subcontractor that's under review. And I think it would benefit the city to have that information stored centrally at MOCS so...

VICKI BEEN: That's a, an excellent suggestion. I will talk with MOCS about putting our enhanced review list into vendex. I will also make

it is something that we take very seriously. We're

very proud of the enhanced review and the

24

1

3

5

6

8

9

10

11

12

13

14

15

16 17

18

19

20 21

22

23

24

25

procedures that we put into place but we are always looking to do better and we look forward to working with you on that so thank you.

CHAIRPERSON WILLIAMS: Thank you. We are going to have a 10 minute recess so we'll come in at 4:30 and then we'll have Parris Simmons, Xavier Givens, Nicole Vecchione, and Melissa Shetler. Actually hold one second. Okay so we'll have a 10 minute recess and those folks will be up. Thank you.

[pause]

UNKNOWN MALE: Alright let's start taking the chairs... they're about to start again. Find chairs. Quiet please.

CHAIRPERSON WILLIAMS: Parris Simmons, Xavier Givens from Local 79, Nicole Vecchione Laborers Union, and Melissa Shetler Laborers Union. Then after that we'll have a last panel which is Johnny Zada [sp?] from Local 79 and Glenn Hatcher [sp?] from Carpenters. They'll be up after this panel. That's all that we have signed up right now. If anyone else would like to testify please go to Sergeant of Arms fill out a form. Can you all raise your right hand please? Do you affrirm to tell the

1

_

3

4

5

6

7

8

9

10

11

12

13 14

15

1617

18

19 20

21

22

23

24

25

truth, the whole truth, and nothing but the truth in your testimony before the committee and to respond honestly to council member questions? Thank you. Each have three minutes. You can start at your leisure.

PARRIS SIMMONS: Good afternoon. Thank you for granting me the opportunity to share my experiences and my concerns with you here today. My name is Parris Simmons. I stand before you today as a very happy man. I have been given an amazing opportunity, the opportunity to get up each day and do something I love. The opportunity to trust the men and women I work with to have my back on or off the job and an opportunity to have a good career and with a real paycheck and benefits. I am a laborers local 79 union construction worker and it has changed my life for real. When I got out of prison, yeah that's right I was incarcerated for nine years. When I got home I went to a reentry program but I had trouble finding work that paid a basic wage. I eventually found work on my own doing non-union construction work. I eventually, one day, excuse me, one day while getting coffee at that job I ended up speaking to some people engaged in a

But also my training is free. Our school provide
hundreds of hours in training from... and

23

my trade. We learn to work safe first and foremost.

I believe we all want to see affordable housing
built but some of us want to see it built
correctly, see it built right. HPD is broken. I

24 hope that you will work hard to fix it so that we

can create career opportunities for people like

3

5

6

8

9

10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

22

23

24

25

myself. And who am I? I'm originally from Queens New York but life has taken me down a lot of paths and not all so good. I once was a promising student until I made a terrible decision at 19 years to get myself involved in a crime. At 21 I was sentenced to 10 years of incarceration. My actions disappointed all of those close to me that had great hopes for me. The thing is after serving a decade I came home with a great desire to succeed, to be an asset to my family, and to never return to prison. The reality is though when our, when I came home I was 30, 30 years old and I had a 10 year resume gap. I was, had no home. I was sleeping on my mother's couch and without any accredited qualifications or degree to my, to my name. I found initially low wage employment and committed to, and also joined some training programs like the Osborne Association to improve myself but I struggled to find fulfilling work that could also pay the rent in New York. And then a year and a half ago I was blessed with an opportunity to become a union construction apprentice. I now have a career I love and take pride in. I also have an apartment of my own. And I'm so blessed to say that next month I'm

curriculum are certified by outside experts. We're

Vecchione and I'm a researcher with the Laborers

2	Union where I've worked on our campaign to bring
3	accountability and transparency to HPD for the last
4	five years. I thank the city council and you for
5	holding this hearing and giving me the opportunity
6	to speak. Compared to the previous administration
7	we expect that this administration will have a
8	deeper commitment to transparency, equality, and
9	worker's rights and look forward to continuing to
10	work with them to those ends. Change is needed
11	because corruption and exploitation are cultural
12	mainstays of HPD. These patterns will persist until
13	HPD is forced to reform practices that currently
14	allow exploitation. Furthermore HPD must be
15	mandated to execute its authority over developer
16	and contractor selection and transparency mandates.
17	And to do this for the public benefit and not for
18	the prosperity of preferred developers. The
19	procurement process implemented by HPD is not
20	subject to competitive bidding which is the
21	preferred method of the New York City procurement
22	policy board and the New York state general
23	municipal law. Frequently HPD developers are
24	selected from prequalified lists or through RFPs
25	where in no rational explanation for this selection

is simply a slap on the wrist for contractors who

compliance to labor procurement and transparency

lot. And they especially do not protect the workers

will finally get a green light from OMB soon and

look forward to actually getting repairs done. I

24

hope to have definitive news for all the homeowners
in the near future. I understand it's been a long
time coming but I can't go back and fix that. A
reply from the homeowner nine months later. Either
you are at the best at a delay game or you've
learned how the scam the homeowners better than the
contractors you hire. The funding angle seems like
a farce. We waited for the last two years since we
sat down with HPD executives and their concerns
about our, our situation just adds insults, insults
to our homeowners. Although required by Local Law
44 HPD does not share the information with the
public about the quality issues and in fact
continues to grant these same contractors lucrative
contracts. If we want to end this tale of two
cities then we need to begin by reforming city
policies that drive inequality. We need to be a
model. We demand transparency and accountability
now before it's too late. The new housing plan
being introduced is ambitious but let's make it
more than that and learn from our past mistakes to
make it a successful one that protects the rights
of the vulnerable workers and produces quality
homes for our future. HPD procurement reform

1	COMMITTEE ON HOUSING AND BUILDINGS 161
2	CO-CHAIRPERSON ROSENTHAL: Okay. So of
3	course I extend the invitation to Council Member
4	Williams to join me but I'd love to follow up with
5	you on some of these things that you're seeing and
6	to learn more about them.
7	MELISSA SHETLER: Okay.
8	CO-CHAIRPERSON ROSENTHAL: And I'm sorry
9	to the woman right next to you
10	MELISSA SHETLER: Nicole.
11	NICOLE VECCHIONE: Nicole.
12	CO-CHAIRPERSON ROSENTHAL:did you
13	submit testimony.
14	NICOLE VECCHIONE: I will as soon as I'm
15	done using it.
16	CO-CHAIRPERSON ROSENTHAL: No problem.
17	I'd love to go back and be able to read it.
18	NICOLE VECCHIONE: Mm-hmm.
19	CO-CHAIRPERSON ROSENTHAL: So when you
20	submit it to the city council if everyone could
21	make sure it gets shared among the committee
22	members. Okay great. Thank you all very much.
23	NICOLE VECCHIONE: Thank you.
24	CO-CHAIRPERSON ROSENTHAL: Sorry.

NICOLE VECCHIOE: So Mountco originally had some labor law violations that resulted in a 610 thousand dollar withholding from HPD and that ended them up on the enhanced contractor review list. At that point they continued to get work and were, and the thing the enhanced contractor status required was a third party monitor. Despite having the third party monitor at the additional project another 800 thousand... sorry, at the second project while they were already under enhanced review they

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

22

23

24

25

enough to find the theft?

2.4

did steal another 800 thousand dollar, they, their subcontractor stole another 800 thousand dollars and they are responsible for the behaviors of their subcontractors. That was recently released within the last month, the Department of Investigation and the Attorney General jointly released information about that and arrested the subcontractors.

CHAIRPERSON WILLIAMS: And so the contractors are legally responsible for the subcontractors?

NICOLE VECCHIONE: So starting in about 2010, about the time the stimulus was released the depart, the US Department of Labor changed their enforcement mechanism to hold general contractors more responsible for the action of their subcontractors on projects on, on federally funded projects and publically funded projects. And that was in direct reaction to Lettire Construction and pervasive wage theft on their projects by both their subcontractors and then later there was a class action lawsuit by their foreman and the employees directly hired by Lettire for overtime pay that was, that was not provided.

redevelopment. If you look into that case you'll

find more information about it.

23

CHAIRPERSON WILLIAMS: So I can think of a few more questions that I would have liked to have asked HPD. But I want to also ask... we're going to look at your testimony but I do want to ask, put that, we probably just need a letter in general as follow-up. I do want to follow up on what, what criteria that they use to choose their RFP and to choose the, the winner of the RFP and why don't they use competitive bidding.

NICOLE VECCHIONE: I...

CHAIRPERSON WILLIAMS: So they are not compelled to, to go to the lowest bidder?

NICOLE VECCHIONE: No. And in some cases they do prequalified lists and you heard about one positive example where they're doing that to increase minority and women owned businesses. But they use that process often times where they get a whole bunch of people to respond. And then HPD decides at its discretion we have this applicant and we have this land and we're going to match the and that's how it's going to happen. So it's totally at HPD's discretion who gets the project and what sort of financing goes into it.

TRANSLATOR: My name is Johnny Zeda and I've worked on construction here in New York City on New York City construction projects and in

24

that actually treat us with respect like human

beings and not like the thieves who mistreat us and

24

2 take advantage of workers fear and necessity to 3 feed their families.

JOHNNY ZEDA: [speaking Spanish]

TRANSLATOR: Please I ask that you work with HPD to stop that they continue to award the types of contractors who do this kind of work and instead work towards real careers with real benefits ad actual protection for the workers and not with such a... [speaking Spanish] with thieves and corruption. Thank you.

GLENN HATCHER: Good afternoon. Thank you Chair Williams and Rosenthal for allowing me to speak today. My name is Glenn Hatcher and I'm here representing the New York City and Vicinity District Council of Carpenters; a representative body comprised of eight individualized locals and over 20 thousand members. Today I speak of an issue that is, the, of the utmost importance to the district council; the contracting policy of the city of New York. With respect to the construction of affordable housing as we look toward construction of 80 thousand new units of affordable housing under the mayor's plan the hurt, the workers who will be tasked of building those unit

1	COMMITTEE ON HOUSING AND BUILDINGS 169
2	must not be forgotten. In this chamber last
3	November we discuss the insufficient manner in
4	which the agency, the agency of housing
5	preservation and development ensures prevailing
6	wages compliance of their projects. Commissioner
7	Been detail how HPD places contractors on an
8	enhanced review list yet does not bar irresponsible
9	contractors from bidding on future projects.
10	Contractors that cheat, cheat workers out of
11	thousands of dollars in wages and, is, are free to
12	bid on city contracts. The New York daily news
13	exposed this disgraceful practice citing a list of
14	10 contractors and one developer that owes workers
15	11.89 million dollars. Those, the problem is
16	pervasive within HPD. Ad so far no solution have
17	been offered by the agency. The article goes on to
18	describe press conferences in which Mayor de
19	Blasio… affordable housing development why workers
20	on the project were being, were being cheated out
21	of wages were told to hide upstairs. New York City
22	should not be subsidizing workers, workers
23	exploitation. New York City should not be
24	celebrating projects that are built by exploited
25	workforce. Agencies tasked with building affordable

CHAIRPERSON WILLIAMS: Thank you very much. I concur with my co-chair. Thank you so much for sharing your story with us. We also have for

23

24

1	COMMITTEE ON HOUSING AND BUILDINGS 171
2	the record testimony from Mason Tenders District
3	Counsel Political Action Committee, Mason Tenders
4	of Greater New York on Long Island, and Mason
5	Tenders Laborers Employees Corporation and
6	Education Trust. I think this was a, a good
7	hearing. I haven't, I'm kind of dismayed in some of
8	the things that I heard and I think we have a long
9	way to go before we deal with this wage theft
10	issue. So it seems that it probably won't be the
11	last time we have this type of conversation. I want
12	to thank my co-chair, did a wonderful job co-
13	chairing with me. And I thank everybody for
14	sticking around for four hours, is that right? Oh
15	four hours. Did we didn't start a late three and
16	half, four and a half Alright. Thank you
17	everybody. This hearing is now adjourned.
18	[gavel]
19	
20	
21	
22	
23	

CERTIFICATE

World Wide Dictation certifies that the foregoing transcript is a true and accurate record of the proceedings. We further certify that there is no relation to any of the parties to this action by blood or marriage, and that there is interest in the outcome of this matter.



Date _____May 4, 2015